CITY COUNCIL

MEETING AGENDA PACKET

Tuesday, March 11, 2025
5:30 pm

Sierra Madre City Council Chambers
232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard
Sierra Madre, California 91024

Mayor Robert Parkhurst, Mayor Pro Tempore Kristine Lowe
Council Members: Edward Garcia, Gene Goss, and Kelly Kriebs




Robert Parkhurst, Mayor

AGENDA Kristine Lowe, Mayor Pro Tem
REGULAR MEETING Edward Garcia, Council Member
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL Gene Goss, Council Member

Kelly Kriebs, Council Member

Sue Spears, City Treasurer

Tuesday, March 11, 2025
5:30 pm

City of Sierra Madre
City Council Chambers
232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard
Sierra Madre, California 91024

The Brown Act provides the public with an opportunity to make public comments at any public meeting; As
an alternative, public comment may be made by e-mail to PublicComment@CityofSierraMadre.com by
3:00PM on the day of the meeting. Emails will be acknowledged at the Council meeting, filed into public
record, and scanned onto the City website for public review.

The meeting will be streamed live on the City’s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com, on Foothills Media
website at http://www.foothillsmedia.org/sierramadre and broadcast on Government Access Channel 3
(Spectrum)

CODE OF CONDUCT

The purpose of a City Council meeting is to conduct City business. Members of the public that behave in a
manner that interrupts or obstructs the Council’s ability to conduct City business may be asked to leave
the meeting. Any and all demonstrations which disrupt, interrupt, or obstruct the Council’s ability to
conduct City business are prohibited. No signs, posters or other large objects shall be brought into the
Council Chambers or other meeting place if doing so would disrupt, disturb or otherwise impede the
orderly course of the meeting.



mailto:PublicComment@CityofSierraMadre.com
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/
http://www.foothillsmedia.org/sierramadre

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
Mayor Parkhurst, Mayor Pro Tem Lowe, Council Member Garcia, Council Member Goss, Council
Member Kriebs

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND INSPIRATION
Mayor Pro Tem Lowe

APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA
Vote of the City Council to proceed with City business.

COUNCIL OUT FROM CLOSED SESSION
Report out from the February 25, 2025 Closed Session.

1) Public Employment (Gov. Code Sec. 54957)
Title: City Manager

2) Conference with Legal Counsel; Initiation of Litigation (Gov. Code Sec. 54956.9(d)(4))
Number of Potential Cases: 1

3) Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Gov. Code Sec. 54957)
Title: City Attorney

APPROVAL FOR READING RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES
Vote of the City Council to read all Ordinances and Resolutions by title only and waive the reading in
full.

APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES
Approval of February 25, 2025, Regular City Council meeting minutes
Approval of March 4, 2025, Special City Council meeting minutes

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL REPORTS
Reporting of Council Members' activities related to City business.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION CODE OF CONDUCT

Your participation is welcomed and invited at all City Council meetings. The Council requests that
participants refrain from making personal, slanderous, profane, or disruptive remarks. A person who
continues to disrupt the orderly conduct of the meeting after being warned by the Mayor or designee to
cease the disruption may be precluded from further participation in the meeting. No signs, posters, or
other large objects shall be brought into official meeting places if doing so would disrupt, disturb, or
otherwise impede the orderly course of the meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda. In addition, the Council will devote time
for public comment on items not on the agenda. Addressing the City Council from the audience is not
permitted; all comments addressing the Council must be made from the podium. Only public comment
made from the podium will be recognized by the City Council and entered into public record.

Providing Public Comment For Items on the Meeting Agenda

Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called during the comment period at the
time the agenda item is brought forward. Persons wishing to speak on closed session items have a
choice of doing so either immediately prior to the closed session or at the time for comments on items
at the open session.




Provide Public Comment for Topics not on the Meeting Agenda
Time shall be devoted to provide public comments for items not on the agenda. Under the Brown Act,
the Council is prohibited from taking action on items not on the agenda.

Providing Public Comment

1. Any person wishing to provide public comment is asked to complete a comment card. Each
speaker will be limited to up to three continuous minutes, which may not be delegated or
deferred.

2. A podium is provided for public comment. Comments addressed to the Council shall occur during
the appropriate time on the agenda and should not be construed as an opportunity for dialogue.

PRESENTATIONS

1. PROCLAMATION IN RECOGNITION OF WORLD CENTRAL KITCHEN FOR THEIR
CONTRIBUTIONS OF DISASTER RELIEF EFFORTS TO COMMUNITIES IMPACTED BY THE
EATON FIRE

ACTION ITEMS
Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such
matters, including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.

CONSENT

a) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 25-18 APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS
It is recommended that the City Council approve Resolution 25-18 approving payment
of City Warrants in the aggregate amount of $332,160.70, Sierra Madre Library
Warrants in the aggregate amount of $62,559.44, and Payroll Transfer in the
aggregate amount of $569,588.57; for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2025.

b) CONSIDERATION OF THE FOURTEENTH TOLLING AGREEMENT WITH GINKO
STONEHOUSE, LLC
It is recommended that the City Council adopt the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement with
Ginko Stonehouse, LLC

c) REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) FOR PROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES
FOR FISCAL YEARS 2025-2025, 2026-2027, AND 2027-2028
It is recommended that the City Council authorize the issuance of a Request for
Proposals for Professional Auditing Services for three fiscal years, with an option to
renew for two additional fiscal years.

d) CONSIDERATION OF SUPPORT FOR CALIFORNIA’'S FEDERAL
SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS REQUEST
It is recommended that the City Council approve a letter of support for California’s
request for federal supplemental appropriations to assist in disaster recovery and
wildfire resilience efforts following the January 2025 Los Angeles firestorms.




e) APPROVAL OF MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING (MOU) WITH THE
COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES FOR ADMINISTRATION OF THE RIGHT-OF-ENTRY
(ROE) PROGRAM REQUIRED FOR THE PHASE 2 PRIVATE PROPERTY DEBRIS
REMOVAL PROGRAM
It is recommended that the City Council execute the MOU with the County of Los
Angeles for administration of the ROE Program required for the Phase 2 Private
Property Debris Removal Program

f) NOTIFICATION OF EMERGENCY PUBLIC WORKS CONTRACT FOR FLORAL
DEBRIS BASIN CLEANOUT BY NORTHWEST EXCAVATING, INC.
Itis recommended that the City Council receive an file the notification of an emergency
Public Works contract for emergency debris removal at the Floral Debris Basin,
following the 2025 mid-February winter storm event.

ACTION ITEMS
Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will consider such
matters, including action to approve, conditionally approve, reject, or continue such item.

PUBLIC HEARING
The appellant and/or applicant will each be provided a total of ten (10) minutes to address their
item. A portion of their allotted time may be reserved for rebuttal or a summary conclusion at the
close of public comment. All other speakers will be limited to a total of three continuous minutes,
which cannot be delegated. These rules will be enforced but may be changed by appropriate
City Council action.

AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s website at
www.cityofsierramadre.com.

LIVE BROADCASTS
Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast on Wednesday
and Saturday at 5:30 p.m.

MEETING ASSISTANCE
If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Clerk’s office at (626)
355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

ADJOURNMENT
The City Council will adjourn to a meeting to take place on March 25, 2025.




AGENDA Robert Parkhurst, Mayor

SPECIAL MEETING Kristine Lowe, Mayor Pro Tem
SIERRA MADRE CITY COUNCIL Edward Garcia, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member
Tuesday, March 4, 2025 Kelly Kriebs, Council Member
5:30 pm

Sue Spears, City Treasurer

Sierra Madre City Hall

City Council Chambers
232 W. Sierra Madre Boulevard
Sierra Madre, California 91024

The Brown Act provides the public with an opportunity to make public comments at any
public meeting; as an alternative, public comment may be made by e-mail to
PublicComment@CityofSierraMadre.com by 3:00PM on the day of the meeting. Emails
will be acknowledged at the Council meeting, filed into public record, and scanned onto the
City website for public review.

The meeting will be streamed live on the City’'s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com, on
Foothills Media website at http://www.foothillsmedia.org/sierramadre and broadcast on
Government Access Channel 3 (Spectrum)

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL
Mayor Parkhurst, Mayor Pro Tem Lowe, Council Member Garcia, Council Member Goss,
Council Member Kriebs

Present: Mayor Robert Parkhurst, Mayor Pro Tem Kristine Lowe, and Council
Members Edward Garcia and Gene Goss

Absent: Council Member Kelly Kriebs (excused)

Also Present: Jose Reynoso, City Manager
Miguel Hernandez, Assistant City Manager
Aleks Giragosian, City Attorney
Laura Aguilar, Deputy City Manager/City Clerk
James Carlson, Senior Management Analyst
Fire Chief Brent Bartlett

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Mayor Parkhurst

APPROVAL OF MEETING AGENDA
Vote of the City Council to proceed with City business.

Council Member Garcia made a motion to approve the agenda as presented.
Mayor Pro Tem Lowe seconded the motion.

Mayor Parkhurst called for a vote of the Council:


mailto:PublicComment@CityofSierraMadre.com
http://www.cityofsierramadre.com/
http://www.foothillsmedia.org/sierramadre

Ayes: Mayor Parkhurst, Mayor Pro Tem Lowe, and Council Members Garcia and Goss
Noes: None.

Absent:  Kriebs (excused)

Abstain:  None.

The motion to move approve the agenda as presented was passed by all members present.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION CODE OF CONDUCT

Your participation is welcomed and invited at all City Council meetings. The Council
requests that participants refrain from making personal, slanderous, profane, or disruptive
remarks. A person who continues to disrupt the orderly conduct of the meeting after being
warned by the Mayor or designee to cease the disruption may be precluded from further
participation in the meeting. No signs, posters, or other large objects shall be brought into
official meeting places if doing so would disrupt, disturb, or otherwise impede the orderly
course of the meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT

The Council will listen to the public on any item on the agenda. Addressing the City Council
from the audience is not permitted; all comments addressing the Council must be made
from the podium. Only public comment made from the podium will be recognized by the
City Council and entered into public record.

Providing Public Comment For Items on the Meeting Agenda

Persons wishing to speak on any item on the agenda will be called during the
comment period at the time the agenda item is brought forward.

Providing Public Comment

1. Any person wishing to provide public comment is asked to complete a
comment card. Each speaker will be limited to up to three continuous minutes,
which may not be delegated or deferred.

2. A podium is provided for public comment. Comments addressed to the Council
shall occur during the appropriate time on the agenda and should not be
construed as an opportunity for dialogue.

ACTION ITEMS

Regardless of staff recommendation on any agenda item, the City Council will
consider such matters, including action to approve, conditionally approve,
reject, or continue such item.

DISCUSSION

1. CONSIDERATION OF SUPPORT FOR SB 90 —
SAFE DRINKING WATER, WILDFIRE PREVENTION, DROUGHT
PREPAREDNESS, AND CLEAN AIR BOND ACT OF 2024

It is recommended that the Council send a letter supporting SB 90 (Seyarto) to
the state legislature, including grant funding for backup electric generators for
water reservoirs.



The report was made by City Manager Reynoso.

Mayor Parkhurst brought the matter to the Council for questions then opened
public comment. Seeing no one come forward, the Mayor closed public
comment and brought the matter back to the Council for discussion and/or a
motion.

Mayor Parkhurst asked the Council if they had a preference on how the letter
should be signed; all the Council or just the Mayor.

Council Member Garcia stated that his preference was to have all Council
Members sign the letter of support. The remaining Council Members agreed.

Council Member Goss made a motion to send a letter in support of SB90 to the
state legislature.

Mayor Pro Tem Lowe seconded the motion.

Mayor Parkhurst called for a vote of the Council:

Ayes:  Mayor Parkhurst, Mayor Pro Tem Lowe, and Council Members Garcia and Goss
Noes: None.

Absent: Kriebs (excused)

Abstain: None.

The motion to send a letter in support of SB90 to the state legislature was
approved by all members present.

ADJOURNMENT

Council Member Goss made a motion to adjourn the meeting.
Mayor Pro Tem Lowe seconded the motion.

The Special Meeting was adjourned at 5:38 pm to a Regular meeting to be held on
March 11, 2025.

Minutes taken by:

City Clerk Laura Aguilar



AVAILABILITY OF AGENDA MATERIALS
Materials related to items on this agenda are available for public inspection on the City’s
website at www.cityofsierramadre.com.

LIVE BROADCASTS
Regular City Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Channel 3 and rebroadcast
on Wednesday and Saturday at 5:30 p.m.

MEETING ASSISTANCE
If you require special assistance to participate in this meeting, please call the City Clerk’s
office at (626) 355-7135 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.

ADJOURNMENT
The City Council will adjourn to a meeting to take place March 11, 2025.




Robert Parkfiurst, Mayor
Kristine Lowe, Mayor Pro Tem
Edward Garcia, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

C ity Of S ie rra M a d re Kelly Kriebs, Council Member
Ag e n d a Re p o rt Sue Spears, City Treasurer

TO: Mayor and City Council

FROM: Anthony Rainey, Finance Director
REVIEWED BY: Jose Reynoso, City Manager

DATE: March 11, 2025

SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF WARRANTS FOR PAYMENT

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends the City Council approve payment of the following:
e Outstanding Obligated City Warrants: $332,160.70
e Outstanding Obligated Sierra Madre Library Warrants: $62,559.44

o Payroll Transfer: $569,588.57
ALTERNATIVES

1. Approve the requested ratifications.

2. Direct staff to return with additional information.
SUMMARY

To ratify means to formally approve or confirm a decision or action, making it officially valid. In
this context, it ensures that the City Council affirms the payment of public funds after a thorough
review process. The City Council is requested to ratify warrants and approve checks issued for
payment, as certified by the Director of Finance. These payments have been reviewed for
compliance with the City’s approved budget, financial policies, and authorized spending limits.
Ratification by the City Council formally authorizes the disbursement of public funds, ensuring
transparency, accountability, and adherence to sound fiscal management practices.

ANALYSIS

State and City Requirements: The approval of warrants for payment by the City Council is a
procedural requirement established under the California Government Code (§ 37208) and the
Sierra Madre Municipal Code (§ 3.04.010). The City utilizes resolutions to approve warrants in
accordance with Chapter 3.04 - Administration of Fiscal Matters under Title 3 - Finance of the
Sierra Madre Municipal Code. These provisions outline the procedures and regulations
governing the issuance and management of payment warrants, ensuring transparency,



Page 2 of 3

accountability, and compliance in financial transactions involving public funds.

Warrant: A "warrant" is a written authorization directing the payment of money to vendors,
contractors, or service providers for goods or services rendered to City departments. These
measures ensure that public funds are used appropriately and in alignment with City policies
and legal requirements.

Purpose of the Process: The primary purpose of this process is to confirm that all payments
align with the City’s budgetary allocations, procurement policies, and service agreements.
Approval by the City Council serves as a critical management control, ensuring that
expenditures are lawful, necessary, and consistent with City priorities. Department Heads
review and verify invoices, while City staff maintain robust internal controls through proper
documentation, authorization workflows, and reconciliation procedures.

Warrant for Payment Report: This attached report, commonly referred to as the Check
Approval Register, provides a detailed account of payees, payment amounts, and purposes.
This tool allows the City Council and staff to actively monitor expenditures, ensuring financial
oversight, fostering public trust, and reinforcing fiscal responsibility. Failure to adhere to these

confidence.

Check Approval Register Overview: The Check Approval Register is generated using the
City's Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system, Tyler Technologies Pro 10. This report
offers a comprehensive overview of financial disbursements, including payee names, payment
amounts, dates, and purposes. By providing a clear and detailed record of financial
transactions, the register promotes transparency and ensures public funds are utilized
effectively. This level of detail allows City Council members and residents to track municipal
expenditures and reinforces accountability in financial management. The following are key
fields from the Check Approval Register and their definitions:

1. Packet: Refers to a batch of payment transactions processed together, often linked to
a specific date or approval cycle.

2. Vendor Set: Identifies the category or group of vendors (e.g., utilities, general, or
project-specific).

3. Vendor Number: A unique identifier assigned to each vendor for tracking and
referencing purposes.

4. Vendor Name: The name of the individual or organization receiving the payment.
5. Bank Code: A code representing the bank account from which the payment is drawn.

6. Payment Type: Specifies the method of payment, such as check, electronic funds
transfer (EFT), or wire transfer.

7. Invoice #: The unique number associated with the vendor's invoice, serving as a
reference for the payment.

8. Invoice Description: A brief summary of the goods or services rendered, as described
on the invoice.



Page 3 of 3

9. Account Number: The City’s general ledger account charged for the payment,
structured as follows:

a. Fund Code: (e.g., 70000) Identifies the fund, such as the General Fund.

b. Department Code: (e.g., 87200) Indicates the responsible department, such
as Public Works.

c. Object Code: (e.g., 52200) Specifies the type of expenditure, such as
contractual services.

10. Distribution Amount: The amount allocated to a specific account, showing how the
payment is distributed across budget line items.

These fields ensure accuracy, transparency, and accountability in financial reporting and
expenditure tracking, aligning with the City’s commitment to sound fiscal management
practices. This process not only fulfills legal and procedural requirements but also underscores
the City's dedication to effective governance and responsible stewardship of public funds.

CONSISTENCY WITH GENERAL PLAN

Not applicable.
FINANCIAL REVIEW/SOURCE OF FUNDING

The payments presented for ratification have been made in accordance with the City's
approved budget for the fiscal year. All expenditures are charged to their respective funds and
accounts as outlined in the City’s financial plan. The warrants, library payments, and payroll
transfers were funded from the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and other designated
funding sources, ensuring compliance with budgetary allocations and authorized spending
limits. No unbudgeted or unauthorized expenses are included in this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL (CEQA)

Not applicable.
PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS

This item has been noticed through the regular agenda notification process. Copies of this
report can be accessed on the City’s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com.

Attachments

Resolution 25-18



ATTACHMENT

RESOLUTION NUMBER 25-18

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
APPROVING CERTAIN DEMANDS

WHEREAS, Government Code sections 37208-37209 authorize the City Council
to ratify and approve warrants or checks drawn in payment of demands certified or
approved by the Director of Finance as conforming to the budget; and,

WHEREAS, the following demands have been reviewed and approved by the
Finance Director; and,

WHEREAS, the Finance Director has verified that appropriated funds are
available for payment thereof; and,

WHEREAS, the register of audited demands has been submitted to the City
Council for approval; and

WHEREAS, City Warrants are the payment of bills, invoices and contractual
obligations incurred by the City of Sierra Madre during the period enumerated therein,
based on the approved fiscal year budget and existing budgetary authority, Municipal
Code authority, or prior policy direction by the City Council; and

WHEREAS, Payroll Transfer is the transfer of funds to cover the payroll costs for
all City employees for the period enumerated therein.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Sierra
Madre does hereby approve payment of City Warrants in the aggregate amount of
$332,160.70; Sierra Madre Library Warrants in the aggregate amount of $62,559.44;
and Payroll Transfer in the aggregate amount of $569,588.57 for the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2025

APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 11t day of March 2025.

Mayor, City of Sierra Madre, California
| hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution Number 25-18 was adopted by the City
Council of the City of Sierra Madre at a regular meeting held on the 11th day of March
2025.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

City Clerk, City of Sierra Madre, California



City of Sierra Madre
Department of Finance
Warrant Register Recap
City Council Meeting of March 11, 2025

CITY OF SIERRA MADRE AND SIERRA MADRE LIBRARY
City of Sierra Madre Warrants ...............ccocooiiiiiiii $332,160.70

Sierra Madre Library Warrants.............coooooii i $62,559.44

Payroll Transfer...... ... $569,588.57



Robert Parkhurst, Mayor
Kristine Lowe, Mayor Pro Tem
Edward Garcia, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

Clty Of S |erra M ad re Kelly Kriebs, Council Member
AG E N DA RE PO RT Susan Spears, City Treasurer

TO: Honorable Mayor Parkhurst and Members of the City Council

FROM: Aleks Giragosian, City Attorney
Clare Lin, Director of Planning and Community Preservation

REVIEWED BY:  Jose Reynoso, City Manager

- DATE: March 11, 2025

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF FOURTEENTH TOLLING
AGREEMENT WITH GINKGO STONEHOUSE, LLC

STAFF RECOMMENDATION
Consider adoption of the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement with Ginkgo Stonehouse, LLC

ALTERNATIVES
1. Adopt the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement as amended,
2. Do not adopt the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement and allow it to expire; or

. Continue consideration of the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement and provide direction
to staff.

ANALYSIS

Background

In March 2010, CS Stonehouse LLC and the City entered into the “Settlement
Agreement” with respect to the property located at 935 East Grand View Avenue, Sierra
Madre, California 91024-0000, AIN: 5764-001-017 (“Stonehouse Property”). Following
the Settlement Agreement, CS Stonehouse LLC wanted to sell its interest in the
Stonehouse Property to Ginkgo Stonehouse, LLC (“Ginkgo 17). In order to facilitate the
transfer and avoid relitigating the case, the City and CS Stonehouse LLC entered into a
Tolling Agreement in October 2011 — thereby preserving the option for CS Stonehouse
LLC (and their successors in interest) to refile their lawsuits at some future date.

389987.2



In September 2012, CS Stonehouse LLC transferred its interest in the Stonehouse
Property to Ginkgo 1. In December 2012, Ginkgo 1 sold a portion of its interest in the
Stonehouse Property to Ginkgo Stonehouse Il, LLC (“Gingko 2”), thereby leaving AIN
Nos. 5764-001-017 and 5764-001-018 with Ginkgo 1 and transferring AIN Nos. 5764-
001-019 and 5764-005-012 to Ginkgo 2.

On January 18, 2023, Ginkgo Stonehouse II, LLC recorded a Grant Deed with the Los
Angeles County Recorder transferring its interest in the Stonehouse Property to CYTS
USA, LLC. Therefore, Ginkgo 1 and CYTS USA, LLC are the current owners of their
respective portions of the Stonehouse Property, but Gingko 1 is contractually authorized
to bind both parties pursuant to a separate agreement between them.

Tolling Agreement

In June 2023, the City and Gingko 1 executed the Thirteenth Tolling Agreement, which
is set to expire on June 30, 2025. Ginkgo 1 and CYTS USA, LLC desire to extend the
term of the tolling agreements. Attached is a Fourteenth Tolling Agreement that extends
the term through June 30, 2027.

If the City does not enter into the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement and allows the
Thirteenth Tolling Agreement to expire, the City risks having Ginkgo 1 and/or CYTS
USA, LLC refile their prior lawsuits to preserve their development related claims against
the City. If the City enters into the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement, then the developers
will have two additional years to obtain the entitlements to develop their property
consistent with the settlement agreement between the Ginkgo 1 and CYTS USA, LLC
and the City.

Status of Development

On October 25, 2023, Ginkgo 1 held its Environmental Impact Report (EIR) scoping
meeting at the Senior Center. Since then, Ginkgo 1 conducted site surveys, prepared
technical reports, and drafted the EIR, with the Notice of Availability anticipated for
release in summer 2025.

CYTS USA, LLC has not submitted any development applications. It is important to note
that both properties were significantly impacted by the January wind storm and Eaton
Fire and the subsequent mid-February winter storm and debris flow. Staff expects both
events to slow the pace of development.

ENVIRONMENTAL (CEQA)

Adoption of the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement is not a “project” for purposes of the
California Environmental Quality Act because under 14 CCR 15378 because the
agreement alone will not have a foreseeable direct or indirect physical impact on the
environment as it does not authorize development, but merely preserves litigation rights.

STRATEGIC PLAN CORRELATION
The Fourteenth Tolling Agreement achieves the Strategic Objective to “Align
Infrastructure with Projected Population Size and Needs” in that it promotes

389987.2



development under the parties’ development agreement and related design guidelines,
consistent with Goal 2 — “create build design guidelines”

FISCAL IMPACT

The adoption of the Fourteenth Tolling Agreement is not expected to have a direct fiscal
impact on the City of Sierra Madre. The agreement primarily functions as a legal
instrument to extend the timeline for potential litigation while allowing the property
owners additional time to secure entitiements and advance development planning.
However, potential fiscal impacts could arise depending on the outcome of future
development activities related to the Stonehouse Property:

¢ If development proceeds, then the City may receive an increase in revenues from
development impact fees, building permit fees and potential long-term property
tax growth.

o If litigation arises, then the City would incur legal expenses in defending against
claims from Ginko Stonehouse, LLC or CYTS USA, LLC.

~ At this time, no immediate budgetary allocations or financial obligations are required to
execute the agreement and the City Attorney will continue to monitor potential financial
risks associated with the ongoing litigation deferral.

PUBLIC NOTICE

This item has been noticed through the regular agenda notification process. Copies of
this report can be accessed on the City’s website at www.cityofsierramadre.com.

ATTACHMENTS:

Attachment A. Fourteenth Tolling Agreement

389987.2



FOURTEENTH TOLLING AGREEMENT

This Fourteenth Tolling Agreement (the “Fourteenth Agreement”) is entered into by and
between Ginkgo Stonehouse, LLC, a California limited liability company, the successor in
interest to CS Stonehouse LLC, (“Ginkgo Stonehouse™), on the one hand, and the City of Sierra
Madre and the Sierra Madre City Council (collectively, the “City”), on the other, and shall be
considered effective as of February 20, 2025 Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City are collectively
referred to herein as the “Parties.” Initially capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall
have the meaning ascribed to such terms in the Parties’ Settlement Agreement defined below.
This Fourteenth Agreement is made based on the following facts:

WHEREAS, on March 23, 2010, CS Stonehouse LL.C and the City entered into a
Settlement Agreement with respect to various disputes between the Parties arising out of, among
other things, the One Carter Applications, the Stonehouse Applications, and the City’s adoption
of the Readoption Ordinance (the “Settlement Agreement”), which disputes gave rise to seven
lawsuits filed against the City by the predecessors in interest to CS Stonehouse LLC
(collectively, the “Entitlement Litigation™) and one suit filed by CS Stonehouse LLC, described

below. As of the date of the Parties’ initial Tolling Agreement, the only active Entitlement
Litigation matters were Los Angeles Superior Court Case Nos. BS 105770 and BS 106081,
which were consolidated by the Court (collectively, the “Active Cases.”)

WHEREAS, Section 6 of the Settlement Agreement provides in part that if the Court
refuses to stay any or all of the Entitlement Litigation, the parties to the Settlement Agreement
shall enter into an agreement under which the City shall agree to toll any applicable statute of
limitations as to CS Stonehouse and CS One Carter only from the respective dates of the filings
of the above-referenced lawsuits.

WHEREAS, on or about March 29, 2010, CS Stonehouse LLC and the City, pursuant to
the terms of the Settlement Agreement entered into a Stipulation to Stay the Entitlement
Litigation, which Stipulation was filed with the Court on or about March 30, 2010 (the “Initial
Stipulation”). It is the Parties understanding that the Court did not take any action on the Initial
Stipulation. At the February 1, 2011 hearing on the successful motion of CS Stonehouse and CS
One Carter to sever the Active Cases from the Entitlement Litigation, the Court requested that
the parties submit a revised Stipulation to Stay the Active Cases through August 1, 2011 (the
“Revised Stipulation™), so that the parties may perform under the Settlement Agreement.
Thereafter, the parties (CS Stonehouse LLC and the City) entered into the Revised Stipulation,
which was filed with the Court on or about March 30, 2011.

WHEREAS, on August 1, 2011, the CS Stonehouse LLC and the City attended a Case
Management Conference in the Active Cases and advised the Court of the status of those cases,
including that CS Stonehouse had an agreement to sell the Stonehouse Property and part of the
agreement called for assigning the rights to the Active Cases to the buyer, Ginkgo Stonehouse ,
and requested that the Active Cases remain stayed for an additional six (6) months to allow the
buyer to evaluate the Active Cases and determine how it wanted to proceed. The Court,
however, refused to do so and told the parties that if the Active Cases were not dismissed by
September 1, 2011, the Court would set a trial date in the Active Cases. On October 11, 2011,
CS Stonehouse LLC and the City entered into an initial Tolling Agreement with respect to the



Active Cases. The Active Cases were dismissed without prejudice on October 13,2011. The
initial Tolling Agreement expired on July 31, 2012.

WHEREAS, on July 25, 2012, CS Stonehouse LLC and the City entered into the Second
Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the sale of the Stonehouse Property to Ginkgo
Stonehouse. The Second Tolling Agreement expired on January 31, 2013.

WHEREAS, on September 28, 2012, CS Stonehouse LLC transferred the Stonehouse
Property, including, without limitation, all of CS Stonehouse LLC’s rights and claims with
respect to the Active Cases, to Ginkgo Stonehouse.

WHEREAS, effective February 1, 2013, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the
Third Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate submission of a development proposal by Ginkgo

Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement. The Third Tolling Agreement
expired on July 31, 2013.

WHEREAS, on July 16, 2013, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the Fourth

Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by Ginkgo
Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate development
proposal. The Fourth Tolling Agreement expired on January 31, 2014.

WHEREAS, on February 1, 2014, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the Fifth
Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by Ginkgo
Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate development
proposal. The Fifth Tolling Agreement expired on July 31, 2015.

WHEREAS, on July 15, 2015, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the Sixth
Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by Ginkgo
Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate development
proposal. The Sixth Tolling Agreement expired on July 31, 2017.

WHEREAS, on July 31, 2017, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the Seventh
Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by Ginkgo
Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate development
proposal. The Seventh Tolling Agreement expired on December 29, 2017.

WHEREAS, on October 24, 2017, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the
Eighth Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by
Ginkgo Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate
development proposal. The Eighth Tolling Agreement expired on December 29, 2018.

WHEREAS, on September 26, 2018, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the
Ninth Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by
Ginkgo Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate
development proposal. The Ninth Tolling Agreement expired on December 29, 2019.

WHEREAS, on December 20, 2019, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the
Tenth Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by

2



Ginkgo Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate
development proposal. The Tenth Tolling Agreement expired on January 31, 2020.

WHEREAS, on January 14, 2020, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the
Eleventh Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by
Ginkgo Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate
development proposal. The Eleventh Tolling Agreement expired on June 30, 2021.

WHEREAS, on June 15, 2021, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the Twelfth
Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by Ginkgo
Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate development
proposal. The Twelfth Tolling Agreement expired on June 30, 2023.

WHEREAS, on June 13, 2023, Ginkgo Stonehouse and the City entered into the
Thirteenth Tolling Agreement in order to facilitate the submission of a development proposal by
Ginkgo Stonehouse pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement or an alternate
development proposal. The Thirteenth Tolling Agreement expires on June 30, 2025

NOW, WHEREFORE, pursuant to the terms of the Settlement Agreement, Ginkgo
Stonehouse and the City have agreed to continue to toll any statutes of limitation and statutes of
ultimate repose applicable to the re-filing of the Active Cases on the following terms and
conditions:

1. With respect to Ginkgo Stonehouse or the subsequent owner(s) of the Stonehouse
Property, the running of any statutes of limitation and/or statutes of ultimate repose applicable to
the re-filing of the Active Cases are hereby tolled as of the dates on which the Active Cases were
originally filed with the Los Angeles Superior Court through and including June 30, 2027. This
Fourteenth Agreement does not apply to and does not revive any statutes of limitation and/or
statutes of ultimate repose that expired before the two respective Active Cases were originally
filed (BS 105770 was filed on October 23, 2006 and BS 106081 was filed on November 9,
2006.) Further, this Fourteenth Agreement does not revive claims otherwise released by CS
Stonehouse in the Settlement Agreement or relieve CS Stonehouse, Ginkgo Stonehouse or
subsequent owners of its obligations set forth therein, including, but not limited to Section 6.3.

2. If Ginkgo Stonehouse or subsequent owners of the Stonehouse Property re-files
the Active Cases prior to the expiration of the applicable tolling period noted above, only for
claims that had not otherwise expired before the Active Cases were originally filed, the City
agrees not to assert any defense that the Active Cases are time barred, untimely, or moot; or to
raise any defense of laches, waiver, or estoppel based on the allegation or claim that the re-filing
of the Active Cases by Ginkgo Stonehouse or subsequent owners of the Stonehouse Property is
time barred, untimely, or moot. The City reserves the right to make such arguments and to assert
such defense in the Active Cases to the extent any claims by Ginkgo Stonehouse or subsequent
owners of the Stonehouse Property in such suits had expired or become moot before each of the
respective Active Cases were originally filed.

3. This Fourteenth Agreement does not apply to the claims by CS One Carter LLC
in the Active Cases.



4. The terms of this Fourteenth Agreement and the Settlement Agreement constitute
the entire agreement between the Parties regarding any tolling of any statutes of limitation or
repose, laches or any other applicable defense in the Active Cases, and this Fourteenth
Agreement and the Settlement Agreement may not be modified, altered or changed in any way
except in writing signed by the Parties.

5. This Fourteenth Agreement is to be construed, interpreted and enforced in
accordance with California law. Any action relating to the enforcement or interpretation of or
otherwise arising out of this Fourteenth Agreement shall be brought only in Los Angeles
Superior Court.

6. This Fourteenth Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, but all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. Each party
represents and warrants that the individuals executing this Fourteenth Agreement on each party’s
behalf possesses full authority to execute this Fourteenth Agreement. Signatures delivered by
facsimile or email shall have the same force and effect as original signatures.

Dated: March 11, 2005 THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE

By:
Name: Robert Parkhurst
Title: Mayor

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Dated: March __, 2025 COLANTUONO, HIGHSMITH & WHATLEY, PC
By: Aleks Giragosian
City Attorney for the City of Sierra Madre

Dated: February _ , 2025 GINKGO STONEHOUSE, LLC,

a California limited liability company
By: Ginkgo Pacific Management, LLC, its Manager

By: Builder Capital Management, LLC, its Manager

By:

Homer Shih-Hung Yen, Manager



APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Dated: February 2025 THOMAS F. ZIMMERMAN, Attorney at Law

Attorney for Ginkgo Stonehouse LLC




Robert Parkhurst, Mayor
Kristine Lowe, Mayor Pro Tem
Edward Garcia, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

City of Sierra Madre e «viebs, councitmember
AG E N DA RE PO RT Sue Spears, City Treasurer

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Anthony Rainey, Finance Director

REVIEWED BY: Jose Reynoso, City manager

DATE: March 11, 2025

SUBJECT: ISSUANCE OF REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) FOR

PROFESSIONALAUDITING SERVICES FOR FISCAL YEARS
2025-2026, 2026-2027, AND 2027-2028

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve the issuance of a Request for
Proposals (RFP) for Professional Auditing Services for three fiscal years, with an
option to renew for two additional years. The selected auditor will conduct annual
financial audits, assist in ensuring the accuracy of the City’s Financial Transactions
Report for LGRS submission, and perform other agreed-upon procedures.

ALTERNATIVES

1. Approve the issuance of the RFP as proposed.
2. Request modifications to the RFP scope before issuance.

3. Reject the issuance of the RFP and provide alternative direction to staff.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City of Sierra Madre is required to undergo an independent financial audit
annually to ensure compliance with Government Auditing Standards and state
financial reporting requirements. The current contract for audit services is expiring,
and the City seeks proposals from qualified firms for a new three-year engagement,

279687.v2
373079.1



covering fiscal years ending June 30, 2026, through June 30, 2028. This report seeks
City Council approval to issue the RFP and begin the selection process.

To ensure transparency, fiscal accountability, and compliance with reporting
requirements, the City will initiate a competitive selection process through a formal
Request for Proposal (RFP) process. This process will seek proposals from qualified
Certified Public Accounting (CPA) firms to conduct annual audits for the next three
fiscal years, commencing 2025-2026, 2026-2027, and 2027-2028.

ANALYSIS

The proposed RFP outlines the scope of work required from an independent auditor,
including:

o Conducting an audit of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
and component unit financial statements.
o Ensuring compliance with state and federal auditing requirements.

o Assisting in reviewing the accuracy and compliance of the City’s Financial
Transactions Report before submission to the State Controller’s Office (SCO)
via the Local Government Reporting System (LGRS).

o Performing a Single Audit if applicable.

o Conducting agreed-upon procedures related to the GANN Appropriations Limit.

o Issuing a Management Letter identifying internal control weaknesses and
recommendations.

o Providing an annual audit presentation to the City Council summarizing key
financial findings and compliance matters.

Selection Process:
» Proposals will be evaluated based on experience, technical qualifications, cost,
and ability to meet state reporting requirements.
o The Finance Department will review all proposals and recommend the most
qualified firm.
o A final audit firm selection will be presented to the City Council for approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL(CEQA)

This action does not constitute a project under the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) and is therefore exempt from environmental review.

STRATEGIC PLAN CORRELATION

This initiative aligns with the City's strategic goal of ensuring responsible financial
management, transparency, and regulatory compliance.

PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS

The issuance of this RFP will be publicly posted on the City’s website and distributed to
qualified audit firms. Staff will ensure compliance with competitive procurement

279687.v2
373079.1



requirements, and proposals will be reviewed by the Finance Director before presenting
a final recommendation to the City Council for approval

FISCAL IMPACT

The financial audit services are a budgeted expense in the City’'s General Fund. The
total cost of the contract will be determined based on competitive proposals. The
selected auditor will be compensated from existing appropriations in the Finance
Department's budget for professional services.

PUBLIC NOTICE

The issuance of this RFP will be publicly posted on the City’s website and distributed to
qualified audit firms. Staff will ensure compliance with competitive procurement
requirements, and proposals will be reviewed by the Finance Director before presenting
a final recommendation to the City Council for approval.

ATTACHMENTS:

= Request for Proposals (RFP) — Professional Auditing Services

279687.v2
373079.1



I. INTRODUCTION
ATTACHMENT

A. General Information

The City of Sierra Madre (City) is requesting proposals from qualified firms of certified
public accountants to audit its financial statements for three (3) fiscal years commencing
with the fiscal year ending June 30, 2025. The contract will be for a period of three
years with an option to renew for an additional two years.

These audits are to be performed in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, the standards set forth for financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, and the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform
Guidance.

The selected firm will be required to assist the City in ensuring the accuracy and
compliance of the Financial Transactions Report submitted to the State Controller’'s

Office (SCO) using the Local Government Reporting System (LGRS), in accordance
with California Government Code §53891. However, submission of the report remains
the responsibility of the City.

B. City Council Approval Process

Prior to the issuance of this RFP, the City Council must approve the solicitation process
through a formal agenda item during a scheduled meeting. The agenda item must
outline the necessity of the audit, compliance with financial regulations, and the
requirement for submitting results to the SCO and LGRS. The final selection of the audit
firm will also be presented for City Council approval.

Il. NATURE OF SERVICES REQUIRED
A. Scope of Work to be Performed

The City of Sierra Madre desires an independent audit of its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) and component unit financial statements. The selected firm
must perform the following services:

1. Conduct an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards.

2. Assist the City in reviewing the accuracy and compliance of the City's Financial
Transactions Report for submission to the State Controller’s Office (SCO) using
the Local Government Reporting System (LGRS). However, submission of the
report remains the responsibility of the City.

3. Assist the City in preparing the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
and compilation of the statements.

4. Perform a Single Audit if applicable.

Page 1 of 3



CITY OF SIERRA MADREREQUEST FOR PROPOSALPROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES

7.

5. Conduct agreed-upon procedures regarding the GANN Appropriations Limit.
6.

Issue a Management Letter outlining internal control weaknesses and
recommendations for improvement.

Provide an annual audit presentation for the City Council summarizing key
financial statement findings, recommendations, and compliance matters.

B. Additional Reporting Requirements

The audit firm must submit the following reports to the City and relevant regulatory
agencies:

1.

2.

3.
4.

Annual Financial Statements: ACFR, Single Audit Report if required,
Management Letter.

State Compliance Reports: City’s Financial Transactions Report, with auditor
assistance in accuracy review before submission via LGRS.

GANN Limit Report: Calculation of the City’s appropriations limit compliance.
City Council Report: Summary of key audit findings for presentation.

Ill. COORDINATION REQUIRED

A. The audit firm must provide periodic updates to the Finance Director and City Council
throughout the audit process.

B. A final meeting with the City Council is required to present audit results and findings.

C. The audit firm must notify the City immediately of any suspected irregularities or
illegal acts.

IV. TIME REQUIREMENTS

Proposal Approval by City Council: Prior to issuance of the RFP.

Proposal Submission Deadline: As set forth in the RFP schedule.

Audit Fieldwork: To be conducted in phases throughout the fiscal year.

Draft Reports Due: By November 15 each year.

Final Reports Due: By December 15 each year.

The City's submission of the Financial Transactions Report via LGRS: No
later than the State’s deadline for annual reports, with auditor assistance in
accuracy review.

City Council Presentation: No later than F following the fiscal year-end.

V. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

Proposals must include:

Page 2 of 3



CITY OF SIERRA MADREREQUEST FOR PROPOSALPROFESSIONAL AUDITING SERVICES

1. Firm Qualifications & Experience: Demonstrated experience in conducting
financial audits for California municipalities and reviewing compliance of reports
submitted via LGRS.

2. Audit Approach: Proposed plan, staffing, timeline, and procedures.

3. Cost Proposal: Total all-inclusive maximum price bid, including additional costs
for compliance with State Controller’s Office requirements.

VI. SELECTION PROCESS

1. Proposals reviewed by City staff and Finance Director.

2. Evaluation based on expertise, experience, cost, and ability to meet State
reporting requirements.

3. Recommendation presented to the City Council for approval.

4. Final selection and contract execution.

Vil. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

« The City reserves the right to reject any proposal and waive informalities.

« The selected firm must comply with all federal, state, and local auditing
requirements.

o The firm must attend and present audit findings at a scheduled City Council
meeting.

Page 3 of 3



Robert Parkfiurst, Mayor
Kristine Lowe, Mayor Pro Tem
Kelly Kriebs, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

Clty Of S |erra M ad re Edward Garcia, Council Member
Agenda Report

Sue Spears, City Treasurer

TO: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

FROM: Jose Reynoso, City Manager

DATE: March 11, 2025

SUBJECT: CONSIDERATION OF SUPPORT FOR CALIFORNIA’S FEDERAL

SUPPLEMENTAL APPROPRIATIONS REQUEST

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council approve a letter of support for California’s request
for federal supplemental appropriations to assist in disaster recovery and wildfire
resilience efforts following the January 2025 Los Angeles firestorms.

ALTERNATIVES

1. Approve the letter of support as recommended.
2. Direct staff to modify the letter before approval.
3. Decline to take action on this item.

SUMMARY

The State of California is requesting $39.7 billion in federal supplemental appropriations
to support disaster recovery efforts following the January 2025 firestorms that devastated
communities in Los Angeles County. The request includes funding for housing recovery,
infrastructure repairs, wildfire mitigation, business assistance, and workforce recovery.

Supporting this federal request aligns with Sierra Madre’s commitment to wildfire
preparedness, emergency response, and economic resilience. Federal funds will
enhance fire safety programs, strengthen critical infrastructure, and assist in future
disaster mitigation efforts.

FOR CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM NUMBER



ANALYSIS

The January 2025 firestorms destroyed over 16,000 structures, displacing residents and
causing widespread economic and environmental damage. In response, the State has
submitted a federal appropriations request for critical funding.

The State of California is requesting $39.7 billion in federal supplemental appropriations
to support disaster recovery efforts following the January 2025 firestorms that
devastated communities in Los Angeles County. The request includes funding for
business recovery, tax incentivized recovery, community and private property recovery,
water infrastructure repairs, wildfire mitigation, air quality, transportation, and workforce
recovery.

The City of Sierra Madre, like many California communities, faces ongoing wildfire
threats and relies on federal support for disaster preparedness and emergency
response. By supporting this funding request, the City helps ensure resources are
available for fire prevention, infrastructure resilience, and community recovery programs
~that benefit both Los Angeles County and surrounding municipalities.

STRATEGIC GOALS IMPACT:
Support for the request aligns with City's Strategy Goal 3 PS 3.1 Maintaining Hillside
Areas to reduce fire risk.

FINANCIAL REVIEW / SOURCE OF FUNDING

There is no direct financial impact to the City. However, supporting this request may
increase access to future federal funding for wildfire preparedness and emergency
response programs that benefit Sierra Madre

PUBLIC NOTICE PROCESS

This item has been noticed through the regular agenda notification process. Copies of
this report are available at the City Hall public counter and at the Sierra Madre Public
Library and can be accessed on the City's website at www.cityofsierramadre.com.

ATTACHMENTS

a. City of Sierra Madre Letter of Support for California’s Federal Supplemental
Appropriations Request.

b. Letter of Request for Supplemental Appropriations from the California Office of The
Governor.



March 11, 2025

The Honorable Mike Johnson

Speaker

United States House of Representatives
568 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable Tom Cole

Chairman

Committee on Appropriations

United States House of Representatives
2207 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515

City of Sievia Madre

OFFICE OF THE CITY COUNCIL

ATTACHMENT

The Honorable Hakeem Jeffries
Minority Leader

United States House of
Representatives 2267 Rayburn House
Office Building Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable Rosa Delaura Ranking
Member

Committee on Appropriations

United States House of
Representatives 2413 Rayburn House
Office Building Washington, DC 20515

Los Angeles Recovery, January 2025 Firestorms

Dear Speaker Johnson, Minority Leader Jeffries, Chairman Cole, and Ranking Member

DeLauro,

On behalf of the City of Sierra Madre, we urge your support for California’s federal
supplemental appropriations request to provide critical disaster relief funding for the
communities impacted by the January 2025 firestorms. These devastating fires destroyed over
16,000 structures, displaced thousands of residents, and placed a severe strain on local
infrastructure and emergency resources. Sierra Madre experienced significant fire damage,
requiring evacuations and extensive recovery efforts. Federal assistance is essential to
rebuilding homes, restoring public services, and strengthening wildfire resilience.

The requested $39.7 billion in federal appropriations will provide housing recovery grants,
small business assistance, and wildfire mitigation funding, helping communities like Sierra
Madre recover and prepare for future disasters. As a foothill community with high wildfire
risk, we have seen firsthand the urgent need for federal support in disaster recovery and

prevention.

We appreciate your leadership and commitment to supporting wildfire-prone communities

and urge swift action on this vital funding package.

91398.1



Sincerely,

Robert Parkhurst
Mayor
City of Sierra Madre

Kristine Lowe
Mayor Pro Tem
City of Sierra Madre

Edward Garcia
Council Member
City of Sierra Madre

Gene Goss
Council Member
City of Sierra Madre

Kelly Kriebs
Council Member
City of Sierra Madre

232 West Sievra Madre Boulevard, Sievia Madre, CA 91024
Felephane (626) 355-7135



= © ATTACHMENT
OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

February 21, 2025

The Honorable Mike Johnson The Honorable Hakeem Jeffries
—Speaker Minority Leader

United States House of Representatives United States House of Representatives

568 Cannon House Office Building 2267 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515 Washington, DC 20515

The Honorable Tom Cole The Honorable Rosa DelLauro

Chairman Ranking Member

Committee on Appropriations Committee on Appropriations

United States House of Representatives United States House of Representatives

2207 Rayburn House Office Building 2413 Rayburn House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515 Washington, DC 20515

Los Angeles Recovery, January 2025 Firestorms

Dear Mr. Speaker, Minority Leader Jeffries, Chairman Cole and Ranking Member
DelLauro,

The State of California respectfully requests a Supplemental Appropriation for disaster
funding to help Los Angeles recover from the devastating 2025 January firestorms. As a
result of these hurricane-force wind driven fires, 16,251 structures were destroyed. More
than 16,000 personnel worked to extinguish these massive urban fire conflagrations
across huge fire-fronts in separate areas of Los Angeles County.

The impacted communities have experienced widespread devastation and the total
impact on California's economy will take years to fully quantify. The funding identified
in this request totaling $39,680,737,878 will directly support these communities in both

GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM ¢ SACRAMENTO, CA 95814 « (916) 445-2841
&=



the immediate and long-term recovery work needed to rebuild lives and properties
from this catastrophic event.

As the State continues to evaluate and assess the damage while conducting active
response and recovery efforts, we expect to identify additional funding needs to help
these communities recover.

Thank you for considering our request, and we look forward to working with you and
our delegation to help repair, restore, and rebuild these Los Angeles communities, and
its infrastructye and economy.

orof CaliforMic/

Enclosure: Breakdown of Supplemental Funding Request

cc: The Honorable Ken Calvert
The Honorable Norma J. Torres
The Honorable Josh Harder
The Honorable David Valadao
The Honorable Pete Aguilar
The Honorable Mike Levin
California Congressional Delegation




Breakdown of Supplemental Funding Request
Introduction

The firestorms that tore through two unigue and vibrant Los Angeles communities
could easily become the costliest natural disaster in United States history. Fully
recovering from the devastation will require California and the nation o prudently and
thoughtfully support the rebuilding of the area’s homes, businesses, churches, schools,
and vital infrastructure. Los Angeles is one of the most economically productive places
on the globe, but it can only rebound and flourish with support from the federal
government as it recovers from this unprecedented disaster. California has long been
the tentpole of the American economy, a state whose GDP is the fifth largest on the
planet and which contributes more tax receipts to the federal government than any
other state — by far. California’s success is America's success.

For the past two months, California has stepped up to significantly expedite rebuilding

efforts. Through executive action, Governor Newsom has suspended the California
Environmental Quality Act and California Coastal Act permitting requirements to fast-
track reconstruction. The state has provided tax relief and expedited cleanup efforts,
part of 19 separate executive orders from Governor Newsom so far focused on a fast
and effective recovery. Our efforts to keep California safe from wildfires continue as
well. We have nearly doubled the CAL FIRE personnel budget and increased wildfire
funding tenfold — historic investments to help protect Californians. No other state is
doing as much to protect itself against wildfires and reduce risk, but there is more work
to be done. It's clear that recovery from these fires is beyond the capabilities of
California alone and necessitates the support of the United States government.

Make no mistake, Los Angeles will use this money wisely. California will ensure that
funds will serve individuals, communities, property owners, and businesses that suffered
losses from these devastating fires.

From day one of being sworn in as the 47th President of the United States, President
Trump and his Administration have demonstrated a strong commitment to supporting
Los Angeles’ recovery by fast-tracking debris clearance and helping to pilot this all-
hands recovery. The same holds true for many members of Congress. We are eternally
grateful. And we are confident that if we work together, Los Angeles will continue to
serve as a beacon to the world and securely place the city on solid ground in the
coming years as it hosts the FIFA World Cup and Olympics — and thrive for the century
to come.




1. Business Recovery

a. Business Loans: $5,290,000,000
California requests a supplemental appropriation for the U.S. Small Business
Administration’s Disaster Loan Assistance Program. This program provides low-
interest loans to businesses, private non-profit organizations, homeowners, and
renters. These Small Business Administration programs will greatly assist
homeowners, businesses and the local economies affected by the January
2025 fires by allowing for repair or replacement of damaged or destroyed real
estate, personal property, machinery, equipment, inventory, and business
assets.

California will be requesting that the U.S. Small Business Administration increase
the limit on real property loans to $2 million and the limit on personal property

——loans, eligible to homeowners and renters, o $200,000. California-also requests
a supplemental appropriation for the U.S. Small Business Administration’s
Economic Injury Disaster Loan Program. This program provides funding for
working capital and normal expenses such as the continuation of health care
benefits, rent, utilities, and fixed debt payment. Eligible entities include small
businesses, small ag cooperatives, most private nongovernmental
organizations.

Federal Agency: U.S. Small Business Administration

b. Business Granis: $4,320,000,000
The U.S. Department of Commerce's Economic Development Administration
plays a crucial role in facilitating the delivery of economic assistance to local
governments for long-term recovery planning, reconstruction, and resiliency in
response to Presidential Major Disaster Declarations. The January 2025 fires had
a devastating impact on California's local communities, at a time when the
state is still recovering from the 2023 and 2024 storms. California requests
additional funding of $4.32 billion in economic assistance to allow each of the
impacted communities to complete projects in support of long-term recovery
planning, reconstruction, and recovery of California’s businesses, nonprofit
organizations, and agricultural, tourism, and other industries.

The Economic Development Administration grants emphasize disaster recovery
to help mitigate the potential of economic hardship as a result of future fires. This
allows impacted counties to complete projects that directly impact people
affected by the disaster. For example, eligible uses of these funds, implemented

4




by local jurisdictions, includes economic recovery grants that provide direct
relief, a commercial acquisition fund to protect against displacement, and
worker equity funds that allow recipients io meet emergency needs like rent
and childcare.

The Economic Adjustment Assistance program provides a wide range of
technical, planning, and public works and infrastructure assistance in regions
experiencing adverse economic changes that may occur suddenly or over
time, including a catastrophic natural disaster.

The Investments for Public Works and Economic Development Facilities provides
public works grants to support the construction or rehabilitation of essential
public infrastructure and facilities necessary to generate or retain private sector
jobs and investments; attract private sector capital; and promote regional
competitiveness, innovation, and entrepreneurship - including investments that

rebuild, expand and upgrade infrastructure to attract new industry, support
technology-led development, accelerate business recovery and new business
development, and enhance the ability of regions to capitalize on opportunities
presented by free trade. The intended recipients for this funding are state, city,
or other political subdivision of a state, Indian tribes or consortium of Indian
tribes, and institutions of higher learning.

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Commerce

2. Tax Incentivized Recovery

a. Low-Income Housing Tax Credit: $2,000,000,000

Based on the existing demand for affordable housing for low-income
households and the affordable housing development pipeline in the impacted
communities, California requests an increase to the federal tax credit ceiling by
$200 million in annual 9 percent federal disaster LIHTCs ($2 billion in total), which
would support the creation of over 6,500 new affordable units. Under this
program, investors are provided an annual federal tax credit for 10 years. This
incentivizes the development of low-income housing and creates jobs.

The substantial reduction in available housing units caused by wildfires,
combined with a surge of displaced residents in need of housing, represents a
maijor hindrance to long-term recovery. The Low-Income Housing Tax Credit
(LIHTC) program is a highly efficient public-private partnership that creates




permanent affordable housing. After disasters, additional LIHTC funding has
been made available to support the disasterimpacted areas.

Federal Agency: Internal Revenue Service

b. Tax Relief
As was granted after previous wildfires, targeted tax relief will directly aid
Californians in rebuilding their homes and communities. We support language
that wil help Californians receive tax relief, including for non-itemized
deductions for casualty losses waiving the current requirement that losses
exceed 10 percent of adjusted gross income; penalty-free access to retirement
funds; disaster-related employment relief; earned income tax credit reporting-
year flexibility; and enhancement of charitable giving incentives.

3. Community and Private Property Recovery

a. Public Assistance: $16,800,000,000

The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) partnered with the State
and local governments starting January 7, the day the fires began, and has
continuously disbursed Individual Assistance programs to the affected
communities and provided Public Assistance Emergency Work (Categories A
and B). California will assist in hazardous household materials and debris removal
in the impacted communities, which will allow these communities to begin
rebuilding homes, businesses, and schools. California also received a federal
declaration allowing for Permanent Work (Categories C through G}, which
provides funding for roads and bridges, water control facilities, public buildings
and contents, public utilities, parks, and recreational and other facilities.

This supplemental funding is necessary to ensure stable funding is carried over
for these critical efforts as we approach the expiration of the continuing
resolution. The request includes an initial estimate of $5 billion for household
hazardous waste and debris removal. This cost may increase based on weather
delays, landfill availability and locations, and other programmatic increases. The
initial request for Categories C through G specifically is $5 billion; however, this is
a very early, preliminary estimate. Califoria and the local communities affected
by these disasters are in the process of transitioning from response to recovery,
and the effected communities are sfill evaluating costs that are eligible under
insurance versus those that are eligible under the Stafford Act Program.

These funds are critical for the schools and students impacted by the fires. At




their peak, the fires and related impacts closed over 1,000 schools (public,
charter, and private) and affected almost 700,000 students. 22 schools have
been identified as damaged or destroyed by the fire, 10 of which are
public/charter schools. Relief is needed for school districts to address school
expenses, which include infrastructure needs, extended and/or emergency
staffing, temporary school facilities, equipment and vehicles, student counseling
services, and lost supplies (textbooks, technology, and student materials).

Funding is also critical for the repair and restoration of healthcare facilities
impacted by the fires. At their peak, fires forced the evacuation of 160 facilities
impacting over 2,600 individuals. As of February 5, 40 childcare, 19 adult and
senior care, five children’'s residential, two skilled nursing facilities, two
congregate living health facilities, two substance use disorder residential
programs, and one federally qualified health center have been destroyed.
Relief is needed for these facilities to address the impacts of the fires, which

include infrastructure needs, temporary facilities, and lost supplies.

The majority of these costs can be funded through FEMA programs and
insurance, so the fullimpact of necessary funding will take additional time to
determine.

California also requests to robustly fund FEMA’s Hazard Mitigation program,
which provides essential assistance to the state and local communities in
reducing the risk of damage to people, property, and infrastructure in future
disasters. California's enhanced status for the Hazard Mitigation program could
make approximately $2.8 billion available for future hazard mitigation grants,
based on 20 percent of the current $14 billion estimate for Public Assistance. A
2024 US Chamber of Commerce study identified that every $1 spent on hazard
mitigation and preparedness saves communities $13 in damages, cleanup
costs, and economic impact for future disasters. Additional funding for FEMA's
Disaster Relief and Community Development funds is imperative fo ensure that
FEMA can continue to meet its obligations from previous natural disasters
without jeopardizing its ability to respond to future events. Environmental
categorical exclusions will be needed for Hazard Mitigation home hardening
and vegetation management to rapidly build and ensure resilience from future
fires. Furthermore, there needs to be a seamless integration and alignment
between FEMA's Hazard Mitigation program and the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development's Community Development Block Grant
Disaster Recovery.




Federal Agency: Federal Emergency Management Agency

b. Housing and Business: $9,900,000,000
Funding of $9.9 billion is requested for the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban

Development to address significant damage to housing and infrastructure. As a
result of the January 2025 fires, 16,251 structures were destroyed. The number of
structures destroyed is expected to increase as more assessments and
verifications are completed.

Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery

Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) funds are
only available through a Congressional appropriation and must be used for
specific disaster recovery-related purposes. This funding is required to meet the
projected need to recover and reconstruct destroyed homes, to support
businesses, communities, and to repair and rebuild infrastructure due to the

recent January 2025 fires in Southern California.

This program provides essential assistance to individuals, businesses, the state,
and local communities to recover from these fires and reduce the risk of
damage to people, property, and infrastructure in future disasters. The
allocation of this funding needs to be accelerated to ensure that impacted
communities can continue to rebuild housing, businesses, and infrastructure in
support of housing as soon as debris removal operations have been completed.
In addition to rebuilding homes and vital infrastructure, the federal CDBG-DR
program also has a built-in mitigation component to implement resiliency
measures to help reduce the risk and impacts of future disasters. There needs to
be a seamless integration and alignment between the U.S. Department of
Housing and Urban Development's CDBG-DR and FEMA's Hazard Mitigation
program.

California requests that HUD minimizes issues related to duplication of benefits.
The state asks that uses of FEMA Housing Assistance (HA) awards are not
classified as a duplication of benefit when those uses are not treated as a
duplication if the recipient had used Other Needs Assistance (ONA) funding
instead. Currently, the limits imposed by HA and ONA definition create a
duplication of benefits issue when the recipient seeks further federal assistance if
they use HA funding for reasonable expenses, like tfransportation or food, instead
of using ONA funding.

California will ensure that its CDBG-DR funds will serve individuals, communities,




property owners, and businesses that suffered losses from these devastating fires.
The State will monitor all new data about the emerging and unmet needs of
these impacted individuals, communities, property owners, and businesses, and
will ensure that the programs and resources made available through the CDBG-
DR funds respond accordingly.

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development

c. Low-Income Home Eneray Assistance Program (LIHEAP): $36,250,576

California requests $36 million in LIHEAP funds to ensure low-income households
within the fire-impacted area have the financial means to heat and cool their
homes or other temporary housing over the next two years. Additionally, funds
will be used to provide home weatherization services to help provide for the
repair of homes damaged by the fire disaster and emergency service provisions

................................. such as temporary shelter, transportation services to heating and cooling
centers, and temporary energy generating devices.

Federal Agency: U.S. Health and Human Services

Community Services Block Grant (CSBG): $12,887,302
California requests nearly $13 million in CSBG funds to support fire recovery
efforts o support economic stability and recovery assistance such as: providing
job placement services; transportation services to work and school; provide
direct aid for food, shelter, and medicine to low-income families in crisis; and
connect individuals to healthcare.

Federal Agency: U.S. Health and Human Services

e. Child welfare arant programs: $1,000,000

Cadlifornia requests a total of $1 million for child welfare programs to support the
more than 438 children in foster care directly impacted by these wildfires,
resource families involved in child welfare, and support programs that aim to
reduce the need for foster care. This funding will ensure that foster care involved
youth and families can continue to access critical services and meet basic
needs, while also preventing child abuse and neglect in the impacted
communities.

Federal Agency: U.S. Health and Human Services




f. Social Services Block Grant (SSBG): $1,500,000
Cdlifornia requests a total of $1,500,000 in SSBG funding to ensure the well-being

of vulnerable children, adults, and families in the impacted areas for community
crisis care, case coordination, and staff retention; to help vulnerable adults
remain in their communities; to bolster temporary foster care support staff to
maintain contact with children in foster care living in congregate settings, assist
with Adult Protective Services and Child Protective Services intakes/assessments;
to provide technical assistance to county agencies; and to support recovery
needs not addressed by FEMA-PA.

Federal Agency: U.S. Health and Human Services

a. Water Infrastructure: $432,300,000

California requests a supplemental appropriation of $432.3 million for the
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund, to rebuild and repair water system

infrastructure damaged or destroyed by the fires. This program provides low
interest loans and principal forgiveness programs for drinking water system
infrastructure. Nine drinking water systems were impacted by the fires, with four
remaining systems not yet able to serve safe drinking water. Several of these
systems have significant damage and need rebuilding. California also requests
a waiver of the state funding match requirement.

Federal Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

h. Brownfields: $5,000,000

The state requests $5 million in brownfields assessment, cleanup, and
multipurpose discretionary grants from EPA's Brownfields and Land Revitalization
Program. California will use these funds to evaluate possible brownfield
properties in areas damaged by the Los Angeles fires. This funding will ensure
sites can be properly assessed for potential damage and redevelopment needs
to ensure a safe and fast recovery of impacted properties.

Federal Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

i. Air Quality: $2,000,000

The ability to identify and monitor harmful toxic air pollutants is critical to protect
public health and provide first responders with the necessary information to
make informed decisions on protective actions. The state requests $2 million for
air quality monitoring equipment. California will use these funds to procure new
equipment, sensors, and monitors to increase the capability and size of the

10




State's emergency air monitoring network. This will enable the State to monitor
for toxic air pollutants during and after emergency events, including during the
rebuilding effort.

Federal Agency: U.S. Environmental Protection Agency

j- Transport Infrastructure: $101,000,000
Additional funding towards the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Emergency

Relief Program, the Public Transportation Emergency Relief Program, and other
programs that can provide immediate assistance and resources to repair and
rebuild Cadlifornia’s federal-aid highways and roads impacted by the January
2025 fires in Southern California. Initial estimates for these programs are at $101
million and are subject to increase.

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Transportation

4. Workforce Recovery

a. Displaced Workers: $51,000,000

The impact of the fires has resulted in the loss of jobs, and displaced workers. In
order to respond to the immediate and short-term employment needs of
displaced workers in the impacted areas, the California Employment
Development Department is pursuing a $50 million National Dislocated Worker
Grant to implement a temporary jobs program. Currently, California has
received approximately 3,930 disaster unemployment claims pending eligibility
determination, and claims are expected to increase. National Dislocated
Worker Grants are discretionary grants awarded by the U.S. Department of
Labor under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act. The National
Dislocated Worker Grant funding is distributed by the California Employment
Development Department to Local Workforce Development Areas and/or
Project Operators in the impacted areas.

The California Employment Development Department also requested $1 million
for the Disaster Unemployment Assistance program, which has been approved
by the U.S. Department of Labor and FEMA. Additional requests will be
submitted as needed. This program provides unemployment assistance in the
event of a disaster for workers and self-employed people who do not qualify for
regular unemployment benefits.

11




Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Labor

b. Workforce Childcare and Health: $375,800.000
Funding of $375.8 million is requested for the US Department of Health and

Human Services to address fire survivors' critical health and child care needs.

California requests $240 million for the Child Care Development Block Grant, to
support new construction and major repair and emergency supplemental
funding to increase access to quality child care for impacted working families.
This program addresses child care needs through repair of 42 child care facilities
that were damaged, rebuilding 33 destroyed facilities, and temporary services
for 1,458 children in affected areas. This program, which provides the foundation
for child care funding, has successfully and efficiently distributed supplemental
funding for child care in past emergencies.

Natural disasters can have long lasting mental health impacts on survivors in the
short and long term. In an effort to intentionally address the mental health needs
of survivors, California requests $130 million in Substance Abuse and Mental
Health Services Administration Emergency Response Grants (SERG).

In addition, California requests $5.8 million in Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention Behavioral Health Preparedness Grants to support the integratfion of
behavioral health into emergency preparedness plans, including workforce
support for managing mental health impacts during disasters. The purpose of this
program is to integrate critical incident response supports intfo public health
preparedness, response and recovery efforts to sirengthen capacity to support
survivors. Resources would support behavioral specialists equipped to facilitate
support for individuals and teams to address incidents and build organizational
capacity to alleviate behavioral health stressors exacerbated by emergency
incidents. Activities include training, technical assistance, and coordination for
mental health and stress management services for disaster survivors and
emergency responders.

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

5. Wildfire Resilience

a. Federal Lands: $350,000,000

Funding of $350 million is requested for the U.S. Forest Service to carry out critical
tasks related to post-fire recovery, community wildfire defense mitigations for

12




rebuilding, and broader collaborative wildfire risk reduction projects. Ensuring
that the U.S. Forest Service has adequate funding for this work will help support
Southern California’s efforts at this critical time.

Post-Wildfire Recovery Programs (NWCG)

The National Wildfire Coordinating Group (NWCG) oversees programs aiding
post-wildfire recovery through erosion control, infrastructure repair and habitat
restoration. Funding directly supports federal Burned Area Emergency Response
(BAER) teams to address emergency situations through the key goals of
protecting life, property, and critical natural and cultural resources. The
objective of the BAER program is fo determine the need for and implement
emergency treatments on federal lands to minimize threats to life or property
resulting from the effects of a fire or to stabilize and prevent unacceptable
degradation to natural and cultural resources.

This program already is proving critical as BAER teams are on the ground in the
Eaton Fire perimeter and are working with California’'s Watershed Emergency
Response Teams (WERT). Severely burned areas, very steep slopes, places where
water runoff will be excessive, fragile slopes above roads, trails, campgrounds,
and other valuable facilities are focus areas. Time is critical if treatments are to
be effective. Given recent rain events and the prospect of more fo come, the
$20 million requested will be critical to support these efforts.

Wildfire Crisis Strategy — Vegetation Management Programs

Through federal appropriations, the U.S. Forest Service has funded critical work
on landscapes identified in the Wildfire Crisis Strategy where all of Southern
California is considered a Wildfire Crisis Landscape for the purpose of that
program. While Southern California has received funding through this program,
there is an unfunded need of $330 million over five years for 165,000 acres of
fuels treatment. This work would include vegetation treatment, oak mortality
reduction, ignition reduction and strategic fuel breaks. Funding this work would
support wildfire risk reduction on federal lands in Southern California.

Federal Agency: U.S. Department of Agriculture Forest Service

ing and Modeling — $2 million
After wildfires in southern California landslide impacts have already occurred to
homes and infrastructure, and threats will remain for the next five years within
and downstream of the burned watersheds. The state requests $2 million from
USGS to perform landslide hazard mapping, assessments, monitoring, planning

13




and communication, and to develop an early warning system aimed at
protecting lives and property. This request is based on a similar congressional
request and appropriations for landslide related disasters.

Federal Agency: U.S. Geological Survey

14




Robert Parkhurst, Mayor
Kristine Lowe, Mayor Pro Tem
Edward Garcia, Council Member
Gene Goss, Council Member

C |ty Of S |e ra M ad re Kelly Kriebs, Council Member
AG E N DA RE PO RT Sue Spears, City Treasurer

TO: Honorable Mayor Parkhurst and Members of the City Council
FROM: James Carlson, Senior Analyst
Aleks Giragosian, City Attorney
REVIEWED BY: Jose Reynoso, City Manager
DATE: March 11, 2025
~ SUBJECT: APPROVAL OF A MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

WITH THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES FOR
ADMINISTRATION OF THE RIGHT OF ENTRY (ROE)
PROGRAM REQUIRED FOR THE PHASE 2 PRIVATE
PROPERTY DEBRIS REMOVAL PROGRAM

STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Staff recommends that the City Council execute the Memorandum of Understanding, with
the County of Los Angeles for administration of the Right of Entry (ROE) Program required
for the Phase 2 Private Property Debris Removal Program.

ALTERNATIVES

1. The City Council may decline to execute the Memorandum of Understanding with the
County of Los Angeles and direct staff to determine alternative administrative
assistance with the Program.

2. The City Council may direct staff to provide additional information.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

As a result of the Eaton Fire, the City Council passed Resolution 25-07 on January 9,
2025, ratifying the Declaration of Local Emergency due to the Wind and Fire
Emergency. As part of the federal assistance, FEMA authorized federal assistance for
the removal of debris for private property. The private property debris removal program
(PPDR) requires the state and local agencies to comply with certain federal laws,
regulations and guidelines related to disaster recovery and public assistance.

The County of Los Angeles was identified by United States Army Corp. of Engineers
(USACE) as the lead agency responsible for administering the Right of Entry (ROE)

279687.v2
373079.1



program for the PPDR program. The County has contracted with Tetra Tech BAS, Inc.
(Tetra Tech) to collect, review and transmit ROEs to USACE on behalf of the cities of
Los Angeles, Malibu, Sierra Madre, and Pasadena in addition to the County of Los
Angeles.

The ROE administration includes collecting property owner consent for Phase 2 debris
removal, defining the scope of work, validating ownership, collecting insurance
information, and transmitting complete and accurate forms to the United States Army
Corp. of Engineers for the completion of Phase 2 debris removal.

ROE applications became available on January 28, 2025. Of the 31 parcels in Sierra
Madre that qualify for the Phase 2 debris removal program, only one has decided to Opt
Out of the program, and the City will administer the demolition of its small garage
structure. However, 4 or 5 parcels have not yet indicated how they will proceed.

ANALYSIS

The MOU contains several County responsibilities related to the administration of the

program, including accepting and transmitting forms, collecting from insurance
companies, providing the City with access to the ROEs, agreeing to provide documents
for any eligible reimbursement to the City, and the right of the City to participate with
local, State, and Federal agencies regarding the ROE program.

The following provisions were negotiated to minimize potential impacts to the
community related to the debris removal:

* The City and County will continue to work together on aspects of debris
removal, including, but not limited to, haul routes and hours, construction
hours for the debris removal, private property tree removal waivers, and
notification to the City and the opt-in properties;

e The County will ensure that the best management practices for watershed
protection and environmental protection measures during debris removal
and transport are followed;

« The County shall notify the City about meetings with state and federal agencies
about debris removal so the City may request to participate in those meetings;
and

¢ The County will create and maintain data access and provide real-time
updates to the City, including application status reports by parcel, date the
ROE is received, date the ROE is reviewed, details on missing information or
documents, case manager contact, etc., for City opt-in properties.

279687.v2
373079.1



ENVIRONMENTAL(CEQA)

The action is an agreement between two agencies about administration of a Right of
Entry program and is not a project under the California Environmental Quality Act.
("CEQA") pursuant to State CEQA Guidelines Sections 15378(b)(5), organizational or
administrative activities of governments that will not result in direct or indirect physical
changes in the environment, and Sections 15269(c), specific actions necessary to
prevent or mitigate an emergency including, and 15061(b)(3), the "common-sense"
exemption for activities that do not have the potential for causing a significant effect on
the environment.

STRATEGIC PLAN CORRELATION

The execution of the MOU with the County of Los Angeles correlates with the PUBLIC SAFETY
section of the Strategic Plan. Specifically, the Strategic Objective to “Maintain a Safe Secure
Community”. It further applies to Goal 3, “Manage the Outdoor Environment” and also Strategy
PS 3.1, “Maintain Hillside Areas.”

FISCAL IMPACT

Staff estimates that the cost to the City will be no more than $43,000. The payment will be made
from the General Fund Reserves. However, a portion of these costs may be reimbursed by
FEMA and CalOES upon their review and approval. The cost allocation formula, as described in
the MOU, is based on the total number of ROEs administered by the County in the entire Eaton
Fire area, and then distributed by the total cost to the County.

PUBLIC NOTICE

This item has been noticed through the regular agenda notification process. Copies of this
report can be accessed on the City’s website at www.sierramadre.ca.gov

ATTACHMENT:

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES AND
THE CITY OF SIERRA MADRE REGARDING THE 2025 LOS ANGELES WILDFIRES DEBRIS
REMOVAL PROGRAM (INCLUDING EXHIBITS 1 AND 2)

279687.v2
373079.1



ATTACHMENT

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES AND THE
CITY OF SIERRA MADRE REGARDING THE
2025 1LOS ANGELES WILDFIRES DEBRIS REMOVAL PROGRAM

1. RECITALS

WHEREAS, beginning on January 7, 2025, the County of Los Angeles (County) was
impacted by critical fire weather, severe straight-line winds, and catastrophic wildfires
(January 2025 Windstorm and Critical Fire Events), including the Palisades Fire, Eaton Fire,
Hurst Fire, Kenneth Fire, Hughes Fire, and multiple other fires (Critical Fire Areas). These
unprecedented simultaneous events caused loss of life, widespread damage, and destruction
to residential structures, businesses, public facilities and infrastructure, power outages,
downed trees, road closures, rockslides, and significant debris. The Windstorm and Critical
Fires Events affected public and private properties in multiple jurisdictions, including the

Cities of Malibu, Los Angeles, Pasadena, and Sierra Madre (Cities) and unincorporated
County areas (together with the Cities, the Affected Jurisdictions).

WHEREAS, on January 7, 2025, the Chair of the Los Angeles County Board of
Supervisors (Board) proclaimed the existence of a local emergency (Proclamation of Local
Emergency) in response to the January 2025 Windstorm and Critical Fire Events.

WHEREAS, on January 7, 2025, the Governor of the State of California (Governor)
proclaimed a state of emergency for the fire and windstorm conditions in the County.

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2025, the Governor issued Executive Order (EO) N-2-25,
which suspended State environmental statutes, rules, regulations, and requirements to expedite
debris removal and other fire recovery activities.

WHEREAS, on January 8, 2025, President Biden declared a major disaster exists in
the State of California (State) and ordered federal aid for disaster response and recovery efforts
in the County and Critical Fire Areas.

WHEREAS, on January 10, 2025, the County Health Officer issued a Declaration of
a Local Health Emergency due to the serious health impacts of the January 2025 Windstorm
and Critical Fire Events in the County.

WHEREAS, on January 12, 2025, the Governor issued EO N-5-25 to coordinate
debris removal and mitigate post-fire hazards and directing the California Governor's Office
of Emergency Services (CalOES) to develop a comprehensive plan for expeditiously

removing debris from impacted properties, including the prompt execution of contracts for
debris removal services.

WHEREAS, on January 13, 2025, President Biden amended his Major Disaster
Declaration and increased to 100 percent the amount of federal funds assistance for total
eligible costs for debris removal and emergency protective measures for a period of 180 days
of the State's choosing within the first 270 days from the start of the incident period.

WHEREAS, on January 14, 2025, the Board ratified the Proclamation of Local
Emergency and the Declaration of a Local Health Emergency.

HOA.105175755.7



WHEREAS, on January 15, 2025, the County Health Officer issued a Local Health
Emergency Order Prohibiting the Unsafe Removal, Transport, and Disposal of Fire Debris to
Protect Community Safety (Emergency Order), prohibiting property owners in the Critical
Fire Areas from removing, transporting, or disposing of fire debris until either they are
participating in the Government-sponsored 2025 Los Angeles Wildfires Debris Removal
Program (Government-sponsored Program or Program) or they register with and obtain
permission from the County, due to the County Health Officer’s finding that contaminated
debris from household hazardous waste and the destruction of thousands of structures created
an imminent threat to public health.

WHEREAS, on January 15, 2025, the Governor issued EO N-8-25, to permit federal
hazmat crews to begin property cleanup. EO N-8-25 authorizes the United States
Environmental Protection Agency (US EPA), the Federal Emergency Management Agency
(FEMA), and their designees to aid in the Critical Fire Areas, including by entering onto
private property to remove hazardous debris and conducting necessary testing.

WHEREAS, on January 20, 2025, the Governor issued EO N-13-25, streamlining
emereency response efforts by suspending certain environmental rules and procedures, and

enabling faster debris removal and protections against landslides, mudslides, and flash floods
in areas affected by the emergency.

WHEREAS, on January 28, 2025, the Board adopted a motion titled "Los Angeles
County Recovery Efforts and Building Urgency into Implementation of Long-Term Disaster
Support,” which authorized the Director of Los Angeles County Public Works to enter into
memoranda of understanding with cities, districts, and other State and federal partners

regarding debris removal efforts to protect life, property, and the environment from immediate
hazards.

WHEREAS, US EPA, the California Department of Toxic Substances Control, and
the Los Angeles County Fire Department have initiated and will soon complete Phase I fire
debris removal to assess damaged structures in the Critical Fire Areas, begin to remove
household hazardous wastes from properties within these areas, and identify potential
hazardous waste requiring further assessment.

WHEREAS, the United States Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), in coordination
with County and State agencies, has mobilized to begin Phase II debris removal though the
Government-sponsored Program, which, as applicable, will remove fire debris from eligible
properties in the Affected Jurisdictions, including properties within the City of Sierra Madre
(City), at no direct cost to the property owners.

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Government-sponsored Program, USACE, in
coordination with County and State agencies, will clear fire debris from eligible residential
properties whose owners opt in to the program by executing a Right of Entry (ROE) form
granting the County, the State of California, the federal government, and tribal representatives,
including their officers, employees, agencies, and independent contractors (collectively,
Government), a right to enter upon the properties to remove fire debris; assigning insurance
proceeds for debris removal and/or hazard tree removal, if any, to the County to avoid a
duplication of benefits, as required under federal law; and releasing and indemnifying the
Government from all liability claims, damage, or losses arising out of the Program activities
carried out pursuant to the ROE form.

HOA.105175755.7



WHEREAS, the Government-sponsored Program does not apply to commercial
properties, public rights-of-way, or residential properties whose owners opt-out of the
Program, and/or do not execute a ROE form, or who are otherwise ineligible.

WHEREAS, the County is responsible for the administration of the Government-
sponsored Program for properties located in all Affected Jurisdictions, including properties
located in the City's jurisdiction, as outlined in the CalOES document titled "2025 Los
Angeles Wildfire Private Property Debris Removal (PPDR) Program Guidance" (Program
Guidance), attached hereto as Exhibit 1.

WHEREAS, in furtherance of the County's responsibility to administer the
Government-sponsored Program for properties located in the Affected Jurisdictions,
including properties located in the City's jurisdiction, the County and the City hereby enter
into this Memorandum of Understanding (MOU), and agree as follows:

II. TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. City Responsibilities

1. The County will administer the Government-sponsored Program for opt-in
properties in all the Affected Jurisdictions, including within the City. The City agrees to pay
the County for the costs to administer the Government-sponsored Program for opt-in
properties within the City’s jurisdiction (City Cost). The City Cost shall be calculated as
follows: [(total number of opt-in properties located within the City) + (total number of opt-in
properties in all Affected Jurisdictions)] x [(total costs to administer the Government-
sponsored Program)]. For illustrative purposes only, if the total number of opt-in properties
in all Affected Jurisdictions were 14,000, and the total number of opt-in properties located
within the City were 300, and the total costs to administer the Program were $20,000,000,
the City Cost would equal: (300 + 14,000) x ($20,000,000); that is, $428,571. The City
agrees to pay the County the City Cost calculated by this method, and the County agrees that
the City's payment obligation under this MOU will be limited to the City Cost calculated by
this method. The County will endeavor to enter into MOUs with the other Cities with
provisions reflecting the same method for calculating the Cities' respective payment
obligations to the County for the costs to administer the Government-sponsored Program for
opt-in properties in their jurisdictions.

B. County Responsibilities

1. A Right of Entry Form, as approved by the appropriate State and federal
agencies, is being used by the County to enroll eligible property owners in the Government-
sponsored Program. Los Angeles County Public Works (Public Works) staff and contractors
retained by Public Works will be trained and made available to review and accept completed
ROE forms for properties located in all Affected Jurisdictions, including properties located
in the City's jurisdiction. The County, inclusive of the County's retained contractors, will
review each submitted ROE form for completeness, including ownership verification, and
confirm all appropriate documents have been submitted. Once received, reviewed, and
accepted, the County will timely process and digitize each ROE form and file them in an
electronic format acceptable to State and/or federal agencies, and enter the ROE form into a
digital database. The County is solely responsible for the timely approval and transmission
of completed ROE forms to the appropriate State and federal agencies.

2. The County will process ROE forms in and across all Affected Jurisdictions,
including the City, and, in doing so, the County will make reasonable efforts to ensure that
HOA.105175755.7



no preference is made for the location of the corresponding properties unless verifiably

needed to advance the legitimate purposes (logistical or otherwise) of the Government-

sponsored Program, with potential minor exceptions for schools or other critical public

facilities, and all such preferences and exceptions shall be disclosed to the Cities for the
reasons of transparency and equity amongst affected jurisdictions.

3. The City will be given access to a dashboard developed by the County to
track the status of ROE form processing and debris removal activities for properties located
within the City's jurisdiction that opt-in to the Government-sponsored Program (Opt-in
Properties in the City). The County will create and maintain data access and provide real-
time updates to the City, including application status reports by parcel, for Opt-in Properties
in the City. The County will provide the City with access to the database(s) supporting the
dashboard so that the City may obtain from the database(s) any database information
relating to Opt-in Properties in the City.

4, The County will create and operate a debris removal hotline call center to
provide up-to-date information and to respond to inquiries from the public.

5. The County will make reasonable efforts to collect available insurance
proceeds assigned to the County by property owners who submit a completed ROE form to
opt in to the Government-sponsored Program. The County will request, receive, and collect
the assigned insurance proceeds, as defined in the ROE form, directly from the insurer for
each insured property. The County will forward the collected insurance proceeds to USACE,
as required under State and federal law to avoid a duplication of benefits. The City will have
no involvement in or responsibilities under this process.

6. The County agrees to provide to the City available information about
insurance proceeds collection for Opt-in Properties in the City.

7. The County has contracted with Tetra Tech BAS, Inc. (Tetra Tech) to provide
some of the Government-sponsored Program administration services, as reflected in the
contract with Tetra Tech, attached hereto as Exhibit 2. It is also likely that the County will
procure one or more additional contracts and use its own forces to fulfill the County's
responsibilities as outlined by the attached Program Guidance (Exhibit 1).

8. Based on the data then available to the County, the County will at least
monthly provide the City with a report that: states the total costs to date incurred by the
County to administer the Government-sponsored Program,; states the total number of opt-in
properties to date in the entire program,; states the total number of opt-in properties in each
of the Cities to date; and shows the calculations specified in A.1, above, to date for each of
the Cities.

9. Subject to applicable federal and State laws, rules, and regulations, to the
extent the County receives any third-party funding (including but not limited to charitable
donations or grant funding) that is expressly to be applied to administering the Government-
sponsored Program for properties located within the City, that amount will be applied to
reduce the City Cost. Subject to applicable federal and State laws, rules, and regulations, to
the extent the County receives any third-party funding (including but not limited to
charitable donations or grant funding) that is expressly to be applied to administering the
Program for properties located in all Affected Jurisdictions, such third-party funding will be
proportionally applied to reduce the "total costs to administer the Government-sponsored
Program" in the formula in A.1., above, to thereby reduce each city's respective payment

HOA.105175755.7



obligations. References in this MOU to “administering” or “administration of” the
Government-sponsored Program refer to the "County Responsibilities” set forth in the
attached Exhibit 1.

10.  The County agrees that it will not charge a mark-up or other County
administrative fee on contractor invoices for the administration of the Government-
sponsored Program, but the parties acknowledge that the costs of County staff and
contractors in the administration of the Program will be included within the total costs to
administer the Government-sponsored Program.

11.  Residential property owners who elect not to participate in the Government-
sponsored Program must submit an opt-out form to the County, along with appropriate
documentation for ownership verification, and must receive the County's approval before
proceeding with debris removal. Property owners who opt out of the Government-sponsored
Program must individually contract for and pay for debris removal from their property. The
parties acknowledge that the costs of processing opt-out forms, including ownership
verification, will be included in the total costs of administering the Government-sponsored
Program. The County will provide the City with electronic versions of completed opt-out

forms for properties located within the City. The City and County intend to execute a
separate MOU for the City's participation in the Los Angeles County Local Fire Debris
Removal Program for those residential properties within the City's jurisdiction whose
owners opt out of the Government-sponsored Program and/or do not execute a ROE form or
who are otherwise ineligible for the Government-sponsored Program.

12.  The County will provide to the City all available documentation necessary to
substantiate the City's request(s), if any, for State and/or federal funding, including, but not
limited to, force account documentation, solicitation records, contracts and amendments,
invoices, and proof of payments.

13.  Pursuant to Government Code, section 895.4, with respect to any claims or
litigation brought against the City arising from the County's administration of the
Government-sponsored Program, the County will defend and indemnify the City for such
claims and lawsuits to the extent covered by the indemnity provisions set forth in part C of
the ROE form. Such indemnification will survive the termination of this MOU. In
consideration of Government Code, section 895.2, the parties intend for the scope of this
defense and indemnification to be interpreted and effectuated to negate any shared liability
solely by reason of Government Code, section 895.2.

The parties have reviewed and understand the contents of this MOU and agree to its
terms and conditions. Upon execution by the parties, this MOU will become final and
binding upon the City and County. This MOU will be in effect until any and all program
audits of activities described herein are completed by the County, State, and federal
government, and the MOU will thereafter terminate.

HOA.105175755.7



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Memorandum of
Understanding to be executed by their duly authorized respective officers.

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
By
MARK PESTRELLA
Director of Public Works
APPROVED AS TO FORM:
DAWYN R. HARRISON
County Counsel
By
Deputy
CITY OF SIERRA MADRE
By
Robert Parkhurst, Mayor
ATTEST:
By

Laura Aguilar, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

By

Aleks Giragosian, City Attorney

HOA.105175755.7



EXHIBIT 1

c Cal OES

GOVERNOR'S OFFICE
OF EMERGENCY SERYICES

2025 Los Angeles Wildfires Private Property Debris Removal (PPDR)
Program Guidance

I PURPOSE AND BACKGROUND.

To qid in the recovery efforts of Los Angeles County (County), the California
Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES} in conjunction with FEMA and
the US Army Corps of Engineers (USACE), established the 2025 Los Angeles Wildfires
Debris Removal Program (Program), wherein USACE will work with local, County, and
state agencies to conduct fire ash and debris removal.

As a participant and partner in the execution of this Program, the County must
perform certain tasks as ouflined by this Guidance.

. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES.
A. URGENCY ORDINANCE AND ABATEMENT.

1. The County will ensure requirements in their urgency ordinance are
consistent with the Program. A model urgency ordinance is
attached here as Exhibit A for the County's reference. The County's
urgency ordinance should, at a minimum, contain the following
elements:

a. An acknowledgment and recognition of the Local Health
Emergency Declaration finding that the fire ash and debris,
including hazard trees, constitute an imminent health and
safety threat and a public nuisance.

b. Arequirement that each property owner whose property
contains wildfire debris choose an option for remediating
the condition on their property, either through the Program
or through a private option.

c. A delegation of authority to the appropriate County
department to develop criteria and metrics for a private
alternative cleanup option.

d. A notice to all affected property owners that any remaining
debris will trigger abatement procedures and costs of
removal will be levied against property owners.

2. The County will amend any portion of their urgency ordinance that

conflicts with the Program. Cal OES recommends consultation
between County Counsel, USACE, FEMA, and Cal OES Legal Affairs

Page 1



2025 Los Angeles Wildfires Debris Removal Program
2025 Guidance for Counties

prior to finalizing and approving the urgency ordinance.

3. The County must pursue and execute abatement warrants for
properties with qualifying structural debris not enrolled in the
Program or an approved private option (Alternate Program). The
County is not required to pursue abatement warrants for properties
with only hazard trees.

B. RIGHT-OF-ENTRY (ROE) FORMS.

1. The County will open and staff an ROE form collection and
processing center or provide an alternative method of soliciting
ROE forms and ROE withdrawal forms and answering questions
regarding ROE forms and the Program.

2. The County will ensure property owners provide homeowner's
insurance information as required in the ROE form.

3. The County will collect, review, vet, and verify property ownership
and sign off on ROE forms, owner fransfer affidavits, ROE withdrawal
forms and property owner insurance policies. The County may, at
its discretion, require property owners to tender copies of
government-issued photo identification when submitting an ROE to
assist in verification.

4. The County will, to the extent practicable, collect ROE forms from
all property owners interested in the Program by the target dates
established by FEMA.

5. The County will transfer ROE forms on a rolling basis to the USACE
debris-planning team via the preferred tfransmittal system once
local jurisdiction has verified that each ROE form is signed by the
legal property owner(s) and that the parcel contains an eligible
structure, potentially eligible hazard trees, or both.

6. The County will respond to public inquiries regarding the ROE form
and the Program.

C. DUPLICATION OF BENEFITS - INSURANCE COLLECTION.

Page 2



2025 Los Angeles Wildfires Debris Removal Program
2025 Guidance for Counties

1. The County will make reasonable efforts to collect available
insurance proceeds from all insured property owners.

2. Upon processing of the ROE form, the County wilt notify the insurer
by certified mail (Insurer Notice) of the existence of the Program,
that the insured has opted to participate in the Program, and that
the insured has assigned their benefits to the County. Upon
completion of the mission, FEMA will provide per parcel cost
information to the County to facilitate this process, and the County
will forward that information to the insurer.

3. In the Insurer Notice, the County will demand payment for
reimbursement with the following limitations.

a. Payment will only be made pursuant to a specific debris
removal provision in the policy. If such a specific coverage

provision exists, reimbursement shall be limited to the
particularized debris removal costs for the insured property,
or the coverage limits under the debris removal provision,
whichever is lower. Further, other documented costs of the
property owner for the removal of debris related to the
wildfires that are not removed as part of the Program,
incurred within six (6) months of the Insurer Notice, shall take
priority over reimbursement for the Program. However, any
remaining amounts shall be payable to the local jurisdiction.

b. If a specific debris removal provision does not exist in the
policy, and if debris removal coverage is contained as o
portion of the total amount available for rebuilding, all
rebuilding and other debris removal costs incurred within
four (4) years of the Insurer Notice shall take priority over
reimbursements for the Program. In other words, if the cost of
rebuilding equals or exceeds the policy limits, no insurance
payment to the program will be required and the owner
shall bear no liability for any program costs. However, any
remaining amounts shall be payable to the County.

c. If debris removal coverage is contained as a portion of
the fotal amount available for rebuilding, and the
homeowner decides not to rebuild, no insurance
payment to the Program will be required and the
property owner shall bear no liability for any program
costs.

Page 3



2025 Los Angeles Wildfires Debris Removal Program
2025 Guidance for Counties

4.

If no payment or response is received from the insurer, the
County will continue to pursue contact with the insurer until
affirmative contact is made.

. If the insurer indicates that payment has been made to the

policyholder, the County will make arequest in line with the
above sections by certified mail to the policyholder requesting
remittance of unused policy funds.

. The County will not be required fo pursue collection funds from

property owners beyond the homeowner's insurance proceeds.

. Should the County engage a contractor to administer the

insurance collection process, the costs associated with this
confract may be eligible for reimbursement by FEMA subject to

federal procurement procedures and rules are followed.

. Once the County has exhausted its efforts to collect the

available proceeds, it shall remit the insurance proceeds to the
State with accompanying documentation identifying the
homeowner, the insurance company, the property address,
debris removal completion date and amount remitted per
parcel.

. When a property participating in the Program is transferred to a

new owner, the County should seek reimbursement from the
policy in effect during the insurable event. The County shall
require a Property Transfer Affidavit be executed by both the
seller and purchaser of the property prior to recording the
transfer. A model Property Transfer Affidavit is attached as
Exhibit C.

D. COST SHARE. Per DR-4856-CA Amendment 001, FEMA Public Assistance
(PA) will cover 100 percent of the costs of debris removal and emergency
protective measures for 180 days of the state’s choosing within the first 270
days since the disaster declaration. After this period, FEMA will only cover
75 percent of debris removal until the conclusion of the incident. In this
instance, the County agrees to remit 25 percent of the non-federal share
of the FEMA PA costs for the jurisdiction under the Program, except as
otherwise documented.

Page 4



2025 Los Angeles Wildfires Debris Removal Program
2025 Guidance for Counties

E. COUNTY LIAISON.

1. The County will provide a ligison 1o the USACE field office while the
Program is active in that jurisdiction.

2. The licison may work remotely where available.

3. The licison will attend debris operations meetings for updates on
and progress of the Program and provide any local input necessary
to facilitate debris operations.

F. HOMEOWNER PERSONAL PROPERTY.

1. The County will assist USACE as necessary with intake, storage, and

management of personal property discovered during debris
operations.

2. lfrequested, the County will notify and distribute personal property
to the appropriate owner.

G. COUNTY LAW ENFORCEMENT (LE) AND OTHER ASSISTANCE.
1. LE will take onsite possession of any firearms. LE will store and return

to property owners to dispose of firearms discovered during detloris
removal operations.

H. FINAL SIGN-OFF (FSO) AND RETURN OF PROPERTY.
1. The County will receive FSO from USACE when USACE confirms that
all eligible delris and hazard frees have been removed from the

property in accordance with Program requirements.

2. The County will be responsible for officially informing owner of status
of property and returning the property to the owner.

I. ALTERNATE PROGRAM (OPT-OUT PROGRAM).

1. The County will establish, at its discretion, an Alternate Program (or
opt-out programj.

2. Alternate Programs permit property owners to remove fire debris

and hazard frees on their own or with professional contractors in
accordance with applicable environmental laws and reasonable

Page 5



2025 Los Angeles Wildfires Debris Removal Program
2025 Guidance for Counties

Il

cleanup standards established by the County.

RECORDS RETENTION. The County will retain Program records for at least three
(3) years from the date that the State submits to FEMA the final expenditure
report. If, however, there is any litigation, claim, negotiation, audit, request for
information, or other action involving the project or subaward that starts
before that date, the records must be retained until completion of the action
and resolution of all issues which arise from it, or until the end of the 3-year
period, whichever is later.

Where assistance is authorized under the Cadlifornia Disaster Assistance Act,
Cal OES will notify applicant of the start date of the 3-year records retention
period via the Audit Waiver Letter, which will be sent once the final state cost
share closeout for all of an applicant’s projects are completed.

Page 6



EXHIBIT 2

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

“To Enrich Lives Through Effective and Caring Service”

900 SOUTH FREMONT AVENUE
ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 91803-1331
Telephone: (626) 458-5100
http://dpw.lacounty.gov

MARK PESTRELLA, Director
ADDRESS ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO:

P.0. BOX 1460
ALHAMBRA, CALIFORNIA 91802-1460

IN REPLY PLEASE
rererToFie. EPD-9
February 2, 2025

Ms. Christine Arbogast
Tetra Tech BAS, Inc.
21700 Copley Drive, Suite 200

Diamond Bar, CA 91765

Dear <ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>